

Republic of Namibia

Annotated Statutes

REGULATIONS

REGULATIONS MADE IN TERMS OF

Abattoir Industry Act 54 of 1976

section 8

General Regulations

RSA Government Notice R.93 of 1977 (RSA GG 5387)

came into force on date of publication: 28 January 1977

as amended by

RSA Government Notice R.625 of 1977 (RSA GG 5516)

came into force on date of publication: 22 April 1977

RSA Government Notice R.1122 of 1977 (RSA GG 5607)

came into force on date of publication: 24 June 1977

Regulations

CONTENTS

Defin	nitions1
1.	Definitions
	PART I
Meet	tings of the Commission
2.	Calling of meetings
3.	Postponement or cancellation of meetings
4.	Agenda
5.	Chairman's participation in proceedings
6.	Voting
7.	Postponement or consideration of matters
8.	Record of proceedings and minutes
9.	Presence of persons other than members
10.	Adjournment of meetings

Republic of Namibia 2 Annotated Statutes

REGULATIONS Abattoir Industry Act 54 of 1976

General Regulations

		r the Act								
	* *	for erection of abattoir								
	Application for alteration of abattoir									
	Application for increase of tariffs of abattoirs									
14.	Objections to directions of an owner of an abattoir									
	Additional particulars may be required									
16.	Plans of abattoirs									
17.	Submission	of documents to Minister								
		PART III								
18. 19. 20. 21.	The period of Certain fact									
		ANNEXURES								
ANNE	EXURE A:	Application for approval to establish a new abattoir								
ANNE	EXURE B:	Notice of application for approval for the erection of a new abattoir in terms of section 12(1) of the Abattoir Industry Act, 1976 (No. 54 of 1976)								
ANNE	EXURE C:	Application for approval in respect of a proposed alteration to an abattoir								
ANNE	EXURE D:	Application for Approval for the Amendment of Abattoir Tariffs								
ANNE	EXURE E1:	Levy return: Abattoir owners								
ANNE	EXURE E2:	Levy return: Abattoir agents								
ANNE	EXURE F:	Register of daily slaughterings								

DEFINITIONS

1. In these regulations, unless inconsistent with the context, a word or expression to which a meaning has been assigned in the Act, shall have a corresponding meaning, and -

"abattoir agent" means a commission agent dealing in the course of trade with meat and byproducts derived from slaughter animals, excluding a hide and skin broker;

"application" an application in terms of Part II of these regulations;

"Chairman" includes the person designated under section 8(3) of the Act to act as chairman of the Commission;

"month" means the period from the first to the last day, both days inclusive, of any of the 12 months of the year:

Republic of Namibia 3 Annotated Statutes

REGULATIONS Abattoir Industry Act 54 of 1976

General Regulations

"the Act" the Abattoir Industry Act, 1976 (No. 54 of 1976);

"week" means the period calculated from Monday to Sunday, both days inclusive.

PART I

MEETINGS OF THE COMMISSION

Calling of meetings

- 2. (1) The Chairman of the Commission shall convene a meeting of the Commission by notifying each member of the Commission, in writing, of the time, date and place at least seven days prior to the date of such meeting.
- (2) Any such notification shall be accompanied by the agenda for that meeting and the draft minutes of the previous meeting (if available).
- (3) The Chairman of the Commission may, notwithstanding the provisions of subregulations (1) and (2), convene a special meeting of the Commission at such shorter notice and in a manner he deems fit.
- (4) Whenever any member of the Commission is unable to attend a meeting of which notice has been given. he shall, prior to the commencement of such meeting, inform the Chairman of the Commission of his inability to attend.

Postponement or cancellation of meetings

- 3. (1) The Chairman of the Commission may postpone or cancel any meeting of which notice has been given at any time prior to the commencement thereof.
- (2) The Chairman of the Commission shall postpone or cancel a meeting of the Commission by notifying each member of the Commission of his decision in a manner he deems fit.

Agenda

- **4.** (1) The matters which in the opinion of the Chairman of the Commission have to be dealt with at a meeting of the Commission, shall be listed on an agenda.
- (2) The matters listed on the agenda of a meeting may be amended, supplemented or deleted by the Chairman of the Commission prior to the commencement of the meeting to which it relates, and by the Commission after such commencement.
 - (3) Unless the Chairman otherwise decides -
 - (a) no matter other than the matters listed on the agenda of a meeting shall be dealt with at that meeting;
 - (b) matters shall be dealt with in the order in which they are listed on the agenda

Chairman's participation in proceedings

Republic of Namibia 4 Annotated Statutes

REGULATIONS Abattoir Industry Act 54 of 1976

General Regulations

5. The Chairman of the Commission may participate from the chair in all proceedings at any meeting.

Voting

- **6.** (1) A vote on a matter under consideration by the Commission shall be taken in a manner approved by the Chairman of the Commission.
- (2) Subject to the provision of regulation 7, the Chairman of the Commission may, at any time during the consideration of a matter, suspend further discussions and demand a vote on such matter.

Postponement or consideration of matters

- 7. (1) The Commission may postpone the consideration or further consideration of a matter listed on the agenda or of a matter not so listed which is being considered by it in pursuance of a decision under regulation 4 (3).
- (2) Any matter, the consideration or further consideration of which has been postponed under subregulation (1), shall at the discretion of the Chairman of the Commission be listed on the agenda of any later meeting of the Commission.

Record of proceedings and minutes

- **8.** (1) A record of the proceedings of a meeting of the Commission shall be kept by an officer of the Department of Agricultural Economics and Marketing designated for that purpose by the Chairman of the Commission.
 - (2) Such record shall be kept in a manner approved by the Chairman of the Commission.
- (3) Minutes shall be drafted in respect of each meeting of the Commission and submitted to the Commission for confirmation at any later meeting and if so confirmed, it shall be signed by the Chairman of the Commission.
- (4) Minutes so confirmed by the Commission shall serve as prima facie evidence of the proceedings of the meeting concerned.

Presence of persons other than members

- 9. No person other than the members of the Commission may without the consent of the Chairman of the Commission -
 - (a) be present at any meeting of the Commission; and
 - (b) participate in any discussion at any such meeting.

Adjournment of meetings

10. A meeting of the Commission shall be adjourned by the Chairman of the Commission at his discretion.

General Regulations

APPLICATIONS UNDER THE ACT

Application for erection of abattoir

- 11. (1) Any application under section 11 of the Act for approval to erect an abattoir in a proclaimed area shall be made to the Minister on the form set out in Annexure A hereto.
- (2) Notice of such application shall be given by the Minister publishing particulars thereof, in the form set out in Annexure B hereto, in the *Gazette* and in any registered newspaper circulating in the area in which it is intended to erect the abattoir.
- (3) The notice referred to in subregulation (2) shall appear in the *Gazette* and in the newspaper concerned during the same week.
- (4) The Minister may recover any costs incurred by him in regard to the publication of the notice referred to in subregulation (2) from the applicant concerned

[There is no full stop at the end of subregulation (4); there are no additional words.]

- (5) Representations or objections by interested persons in connection with any such application shall be submitted to the Minister, in writing, and shall fully and clearly set out the grounds of such representations or objections.
- (6) Whenever a person in terms of subregulation (5) submits to the Minister objections to an application, such person shall serve on the applicant a copy of the document in which such objections are set out.
- (7) The applicant may submit to the Minister within 30 days after receipt of such copy or such longer period as may be approved by the Minister, a written answer to such objections.
- (8) The Minister may, on considering such application, refuse to entertain the objections of any person who fails to comply with the provision of subregulation (6).

Application for alteration of abattoir

- 12. (1) Any application under section 13 of the Act for approval to substantially alter the layout of a proclaimed area, shall be made to the Minister on the form set out in Annexure C hereto.
- (2) The Minister may in respect of any particular application, direct the applicant to give notice of such application in a specified manner and to request interested persons to submit to the Minister representations or objections in respect of such application within a specified period.

Application for increase of tariffs of abattoirs

13. (1) Any application under section 21 of the Act for an increase of a tariff in respect of the use of, or the performance of a service at, an abattoir shall be made to the Minister in the form set out in Annexure D hereto. Any application under section 21 of the Act for an increase of a tariff in respect of the use of, or the performance of a service at, an abattoir, shall be made to the Minister on the form set out in Annexure D hereto.

Republic of Namibia 6 Annotated Statutes

REGULATIONS Abattoir Industry Act 54 of 1976

General Regulations

(2) The provisions of regulation 12(2) shall *mutatis mutandis* apply to an application under subregulation (1).

Objections to directions of an owner of an abattoir

14. (1) Any person in respect of whom a direction issued to him by the owner of an abattoir in terms of section 32(2) of the Act applies, may lodge with the Minister a written objection to such direction within 30 days after the date which such direction was served on him.

[There is no full stop at the end of subregulation (1); there are no additional words.]

- (2) Whenever a person lodges any such objection with the Minister under subregulation (1), such person shall serve on the owner concerned a copy of the document in which such objection is set out.
- (3) Such owner may submit to the Minister within 10 days after receipt of such copy or any such longer period as may be approved by the Minister, a written answer to such objection.
- (4) The Minister may refuse to entertain any such objection if the person concerned fails to comply with the provisions of subregulation (2).

Additional particulars may be required

- 15. (1) The Minister may, in connection with any application submitted to him, or any representations or objections relating to such application, require from the applicant or person who has submitted such representations or objections, as the case may be, such further particulars as may be determined by him.
- (2) For the purpose of subregulation (1) the Minister may direct that such further particulars shall be submitted to him within a period determined by him.
- (3) If the person from whom the Minister has required such further particulars, fails to submit it within the said period, the Minister may refuse to accord any further consideration to such application if such person is an applicant, or to entertain the representations or objections concerned on considering the application, if such person is a person who has submitted representations or objections in connection with such application.

[The word "it" should be "them", to accord with the "particulars" referred to.]

(4) Unless the Minister otherwise directs the provisions of regulations 11(6) and (7) and 14(2) and (3), shall not apply in respect of the submission of such further particulars to the Minister.

Plans of abattoirs

- **16.** (1) Where, under these regulations or in any annexure hereto, any requirement is made in regard to the submission to the Minister of a plan relating to an abattoir, such plan shall, when so submitted, be drawn in black waterproof ink on tracing linen or be a clear print on white cloth.
- (2) A plan of the layout of an abattoir shall be to the scale of 1:250, or to any such other scale approved by the Commission and shall indicate -

Republic of Namibia 7 Annotated Statutes

REGULATIONS Abattoir Industry Act 54 of 1976

General Regulations

- (a) the scale concerned;
- (b) the direction of true north;
- (c) the dimensions and boundaries of the abattoir premises;
- (d) the streets upon which the premises abut and the names thereof:
- (e) the purposes for which the adjacent land is used;
- (f) every entrance to the premises;
- (g) every building, structure and other immovable improvements on the premises and purpose for which each is used;
- (h) every entrance to such building, structure or other immovable improvement:
- (i) the railway, road motor and truck off-loading and loading facilities;
- (j) the situation of the premises in relation to existing or proposed main arterial roads.
- (3) A plan of a building, structure or other immovable improvement shall be on a scale of 1:100 or to any such other scale approved by the Commission and shall indicate -
 - (a) the scale concerned;
 - (b) the direction of true north;
 - (c) every stoney or level separately in plan, elevation and cross section;

[The word "storey" is misspelt in the *Government Gazette*, as reproduced above. The word "cross-section" is normally hyphenated.]

- (d) every room or area, the surface area thereof and the purpose for which each is used;
- (e) all entrances, corridors, communicating doors and windows;
- (f) all fixed equipment and the purposes for which it is used;
- (g) the electricity, water and sewerage connection points.
- (4) The Minister may, in respect of any particular application -
- (a) exempt the applicant from the obligation to submit a plan to him, or from any requirement which a plan has to comply with in terms of this regulation;
- (b) direct the applicant to bring on specific data on any plan which has been submitted to him;
- (c) direct the applicant to submit to him, to the satisfaction of the Commission, any additional or separate plan in respect of any building, structure or other immovable improvement on the abattoir premises.

Republic of Namibia 8 Annotated Statutes

REGULATIONS Abattoir Industry Act 54 of 1976

General Regulations

(5) The Minister may refuse to consider an application if the applicant fails to comply with the provisions of this regulation or with any direction issued thereunder.

Submission of documents to Minister

17. Representations, objections and other submissions in terms of these regulations, shall be affirmed under oath and submitted to the Minister in triplicate, by forwarding it under registered cover to the Chairman, Abattoir Commission, Private Bag X250, Pretoria, 0001, or by handing it in at the office of the said Chairman.

PART III

LEVIES

The period within which and the manner in which levies shall be paid

- **18.** (1) A levy imposed by the Minister under section 28(1) of the Act on animals slaughtered -
 - (a) at an abattoir in the Republic where a scheme is not applied or at an abattoir in the Territory, shall be paid for the benefit of the Special Account, by the owner of the abattoir where such animals were slaughtered, under cover of a return on the form set out in Annexure E1 hereto on or before the 15th day of the month following the month in which the animals were so slaughtered;
 - (b) at an abattoir in the Republic where a scheme is applied, shall be paid for the benefit of the Special Account. by such abattoir agent, through whose agency those animals were slaughtered, under cover of a return on the form set out in Annexure E2 hereto on or before the Wednesday of the week following the week in which the animals were so slaughtered.
 - (2) For the purpose of subregulation (1) -
 - (a) payment of a levy in respect of animals slaughtered in the Republic, shall be made to the Meat Board, P.O. Box 1357, Pretoria, 0001, or at any branch office of the said Board, and in respect of animals slaughtered in the Territory, to the Meat Trade Control Board, P.O. Box 38, Windhoek, 9100;
 - (b) cheques and other negotiable documents shall be made payable to "the Meat Board".

Certain facts to be proved in regard to condemned carcase

19. If in terms of section 28(3) of the Act it is determined that a levy shall not be payable in respect of any slaughtered animal of which the carcase has been condemned for human consumption by a competent authority in terms of any law, the return referred to in regulation 18(1)(a) or (b) shall be accompanied by a certificate of proof, to the satisfaction of the Minister. in respect of each carcase so condemned during the period to which such return relates.

Recovery of certain levies paid on behalf of persons

20. (1) Any owner of an abattoir who under regulation 18(1)(a) has paid or has to pay a levy for the benefit of the Special Account on an animal of which he was not the owner, may recover the amount of any such levy from the person on whose behalf the animal was slaughtered

General Regulations

by adding it to the tariff payable to such owner under section 21 of the Act in respect of the slaughter of such animal.

(2) Any abattoir agent who under regulation 18(1)(b) has paid or has to pay a levy for the benefit of the Special Account on an animal which was slaughtered through his agency on behalf of any other person, may recover the amount of any such levy from such person by deducting it from the proceeds of the sale of the meat and by-products derived from such animal.

[There is no full stop at the end of subregulation (2); there are no additional words.]

Keeping of register

21. An owner of an abattoir shall establish and keep a register in the form set out in Annexure F hereto, in respect of the number of animals slaughtered daily at his abattoir.

Offences and penalties

22. Any person who fails to comply with the provisions of regulation 21 shall be guilty of an offence and on conviction be liable to a fine not exceeding R200 or to imprisonment for a period not exceeding 6 months.

[section 22 inserted by RSA GN R.1122/1977]

ANNEXURES

To view content without printing, scroll down.

To print at full scale (A4), double-click the icon below.





[Annexure D substituted by RSA GN R.625/1977]

General Regulations

ANNEXURE A

ABATTOIR INDUSTRY ACT, 1976 (No. 54 OF 1976) APPLICATION FOR APPROVAL TO ESTABLISH A NEW ABATTOIR

Important.--See explanations at the end of this form

A. PARTICULARS OF APPLICANT (See Explanations 1 and 2)

(See Explanations 1 and 2)
1. Full name. 2. Address. 3. Race
B. SITUATION OF PROPOSED ABATTOIR
Magisterial District Name of town in which abattoir will be situated
Should the abattoir not be situated in any town, state name o nearest town and the distance and direction thereto
(a) Is suitable premises available to the applicant for the establish ment of an abattoir?
(b) If so, state—
(i) address of the premises:
Erf No. Township.
or
Name and number of farm. (iii) area of premises. (iv) whether premises have been zoned in terms of a town planning scheme.
(c) If not, state whether applicant has made any arrangements to acquire premises
C. CAPITAL
1. (a) State whether capital expenditure has already been incurred in regard to—
(i) acquisition of premises. (ii) planning. (iii) other (specify).
(b) If so, state amount so incurred and specify how it has been compiled

Republic of Namibia 11 Annotated Statutes

REGULATIONS Abattoir Industry Act 54 of 1976

General Regulations

2. What is the prelimit (a) the establishment of R	the abat	toir (exc	luding c	ost of pi	remises)				
(b) the acquisition of suitable premises (if not acquired previously R									
3. (a) Does applicant haproject?	ve sufficie	ent capita	al availa	ble to fir	ance the				
(i) is it his own capital(ii) is it borrowed capit	al?			• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •					
(c) If not, what arranger thereof?	ments are	contem	plated fo	or the ac	quisition				
D. PROPOSED 1. For which of the foll abattoir: (a) Receipt, custody, caring (Make an "X	owing fa	cilities is	it inten	ded to e	errect the				
		Calves	Sheep and goats	Pigs	Horses mules and donkeys				
Pens for									
Electrical stunning ap-									
Shooting pens for Bleeding areas for									
Dressing-on-the-line for Bed dressing for									
f) Separate area for hides (i) handling	for the p	production	on of—						
(b) State source from whi	ch water	will be ol	btained	************	,				
3. State whether there wi (a) electricity (b) hot water (c) steam	ll be ava	ilable at	the abat	toir—					
4. (a) How will the supp									
(b) If by rail, indicate whe	attoir			*********	***********				
Give particulars of any property of the South Africant his regard	name of	f and the	e distanc	e to the	nearest				
hereof (see explanation No), 4).				n copies				
E. CAPACITY 1. State for which number day of eight hours) it is con-	of slaug	hterings	on the b	asis of a	working respect				
(a) cattle (b) calves (c) sheep and goats (d) pigs (e) horses, mules and doi									

General Regulations

abattoir is put into service, in respect of-
(i) cattle?
(ii) calves? (iii) sheep and goats?
(iv) pigs? (v) horses, mules and donkeys?
(v) horses, mules and donkeys?
(b) What is the expected increase in the number of slaughterings during the next
(i) five years?
(ii) ten years?
F. PURPOSES OF ABATTOIR
1. (a) Is the establishment of the abattoir of a temporary or a permanent nature?
(b) If temporary, when is the cessation of slaughter activities expected?
State whom of the undermentioned persons will perform the function of slaughtering at the abattoir:
(a) Owner of abattoir
(b) Independent operators* specially appointed for that purpose by the owner.
by the owner(c) Any member of the public
* See Explanation 3.
3. State for which of the following purposes the meat obtained at
the abattoir will be used—
(i) for the public meat requirements of any town or area
(ii) for trading purposes of—
(aa) the abattoir owner only
(bb) the abattoir owner and other traders
(cc) traders only (iii) solely/mainly† for consumption by any particular private class or group of persons (e.g. residents of an hotel or employees
or group of persons (e.g. residents of an hotel or employees
at a mine)
employees(v) solely/mainly† for a zoological garden
(vi) solely/mainly/partly† for processing into any meat product
(vii) solely/mainly/partly† for canning
(viii) any other purposes (specify)
† Delete which is not applicable.
4. If the abattoir will provide in the public meat requirements of any particular town or area, state—
(a) name of town or describe area.
(b) present population
(c) expected increase in population during the next 10 years
(d) expected development
5. Will there be connected to the abattoir—
(a) a retail butchery
(b) a wholesale butchery
(c) a meat canning factory
(d) a meat processing factory
, ,
(d) a meat processing factory
(d) a meat processing factory
(d) a meat processing factory
(d) a meat processing factory G. REASONS FOR ESTABLISHMENT OF NEW ABATTOIR 1. State name and distance by road from— (a) nearest public abattoir (b) nearest private abattoir
(d) a meat processing factory G. REASONS FOR ESTABLISHMENT OF NEW ABATTOIR 1. State name and distance by road from— (a) nearest public abattoir (b) nearest private abattoir
(d) a meat processing factory
(d) a meat processing factory G. REASONS FOR ESTABLISHMENT OF NEW ABATTOIR 1. State name and distance by road from— (a) nearest public abattoir (b) nearest private abattoir 2. Give full reasons why the applicant cannot fulfill his needs by using the above-mentioned abattoirs instead of establishing a new abattoir
(d) a meat processing factory. G. REASONS FOR ESTABLISHMENT OF NEW ABATTOIR 1. State name and distance by road from— (a) nearest public abattoir. (b) nearest private abattoir 2. Give full reasons why the applicant cannot fulfill his needs by using the above-mentioned abattoirs instead of establishing a new abattoir. 3. If it is the purpose of the proposed new abattoir to provide in the public meat requirements of a specific town or area state from where meat is supplied at present to provide in such requirements
(d) a meat processing factory. G. REASONS FOR ESTABLISHMENT OF NEW ABATTOIR 1. State name and distance by road from— (a) nearest public abattoir. (b) nearest private abattoir. 2. Give full reasons why the applicant cannot fulfill his needs by using the above-mentioned abattoirs instead of establishing a new abattoir. 3. If it is the purpose of the proposed new abattoir to provide in the public meat requirements of a specific town or area state from where meat is supplied at present to provide in such requirements. H. GENERAL
(d) a meat processing factory. G. REASONS FOR ESTABLISHMENT OF NEW ABATTOIR 1. State name and distance by road from— (a) nearest public abattoir. (b) nearest private abattoir 2. Give full reasons why the applicant cannot fulfill his needs by using the above-mentioned abattoirs instead of establishing a new abattoir. 3. If it is the purpose of the proposed new abattoir to provide in the public meat requirements of a specific town or area state from where meat is supplied at present to provide in such requirements H. GENERAL 1. When is it contemplated to put the abattoir into service?
(d) a meat processing factory. G. REASONS FOR ESTABLISHMENT OF NEW ABATTOIR 1. State name and distance by road from— (a) nearest public abattoir. (b) nearest private abattoir. 2. Give full reasons why the applicant cannot fulfill his needs by using the above-mentioned abattoirs instead of establishing a new abattoir. 3. If it is the purpose of the proposed new abattoir to provide in the public meat requirements of a specific town or area state from where meat is supplied at present to provide in such requirements H. GENERAL 1. When is it contemplated to put the abattoir into service? 2. (a) Is it intended to operate the abattoir on—
(d) a meat processing factory. G. REASONS FOR ESTABLISHMENT OF NEW ABATTOIR 1. State name and distance by road from— (a) nearest public abattoir. (b) nearest private abattoir 2. Give full reasons why the applicant cannot fulfill his needs by using the above-mentioned abattoirs instead of establishing a new abattoir. 3. If it is the purpose of the proposed new abattoir to provide in the public meat requirements of a specific town or area state from where meat is supplied at present to provide in such requirements H. GENERAL 1. When is it contemplated to put the abattoir into service?

General Regulations

(b) If on a profit basis, state the percentage earnings which is expected as a reasonable return on the invested capital in the venture after provision for reserve funds, expansion and tax (if any)
I (full name)
Date Applicant
EXPLANATIONS
1. The applicant is the person who will be the "owner" of the abattoir. "Owner", for the purposes of the Act, means—
"the person in whom the ownership of any abattoir is vested or in the case of any abattoir in respect of which the right of genera control is vested in a person other than the person in whom such ownership is vested, that other person."
If e.g. any lessee intends to establish an abattoir on land hired by him, the lessee and not the person in whom the ownership of the land vests, will be regarded as the owner of the abattoir.
2. "Abattoir", means—
"a place where animals are slaughtered or are intended to be slaughtered and includes all facilities which normally appertain or are attached to such a place, whether or not such facilities are situated at the same place as such place."
An abattoir, therefore, includes any place where any bovine animal sheep, goat, pig, horse, mule or donkey is slaughtered, irrespective of whether such place is equipped for the slaughter of animals or not Section 43 of the Act, however, provides for certain exemptions.
3. "Operator", means— "a person, other than the owner of an abattoir or an abattoir agent, who carried on a business for his own account and who for the purposes of such a business uses such abattoir for the performance of a service".
Regulation 16 contains the requirements which plans have to comply with and the information to be indicated thereon.
ANNEXURE B
NOTICE OF APPLICATION FOR APPROVAL FOR THE ERECTION OF A NEW ABATTOIR IN TERMS OF SECTION 12 (1) OF THE ABATTOIR INDUSTRY ACT, 1976 (No. 54 OF 1976)
It is hereby made known in terms of section 12 (1) of the Abattoi Industry Act, 1976 (No. 54 of 1976), that (name)
of (address) has applied to the Minister of Agriculture for approval for the erection of a new abattoir at
granted, the abattoir will be used for
Any person intending to submit representations or objections in regard to the above-mentioned application shall forward such representations or objections to the Chairman, Abattoir Commission Private Bag X250, Pretoria, 0001, within a period of description of the date of publication of this notice and in the manner set ou in the regulations published under the said Act.
Attention is invited to the provisions of regulation 11 (6) of the said regulations which requires any person who submits objections to an application to the Minister to serve on the applicant concerned a copy of the document in which his objections are set out.
ANNEXURE C
ABATTOIR INDUSTRY ACT, 1976 (No. 54 OF 1976)
APPLICATION FOR APPROVAL IN RESPECT OF A PROPOSED ALTERATION TO AN ABATTOIR
I (full name)
Give full particulars of the nature of the proposed alteration

If any structural alteration is contemplated, a plan(s) on which the alteration is fully indicated, must accompany this application.

General Regulations

PARTICULARS

1. Reasons for proposed alteration
2. Main purpose of the proposed alteration
3. If the present capacity of the abattoir will be increased by the proposed alteration, the following information must be given:
(a) State the number of slaughterings (on the basis of a working day of eight hours) for which the abattoir is presently equipped in respect of—
(i) cattle
(ii) calves
(iii) sheep and goats
(iv) pigs
(v) horses, mules and donkeys
(b) State the number of slaughterings (on the basis of a working day of eight hours) for which the abattoir will be equipped after the proposed alteration has been effected in respect of—
(i) cattle
(ii) calves
(iii) sheep and goats
(iv) pigs
(v) horses, mules and donkeys
(c) State extent to which the present capacity of the abattoir is now utilised
(d) If the abattoir is a public abattoir, state which town or area is served by it and the present population thereof
4. What is the estimated cost of effecting the proposed alteration? (Specify in detail)
5. (a) Does applicant have sufficient capital available to finance the alteration?
(b) If so, is it—
(i) his own capital?
(ii) borrowed capital?
(c) If not, which arrangements are contemplated for the acquisition thereof?
6. (a) Will the alteration cause any savings of costs?
(i) in what manner?
(ii) estimated savings per annum?
7. What effect will the proposed alteration have on the tariffs which are at present applicable in respect of the use of the abattoir?
which are at present applicable in respect of the use of the abattoir?
I (full name)
the undersigned, in my capacity as
DateApplicant

General Regulations

[Annexure D substituted by RSA GN R.625/1977]

ANNEXURE D

ABATTOIR INDUSTRY ACT, 1976 (ACT 54 OF 1976)

Application for approval for the amendment of abattoir tariffs

- 1. Give full particulars of-
- (a) all existing tariffs in force and the date on which they came into operation; and
 - (b) all proposed tariffs.
 - 2. Give full reasons for the application.
- 3. Do you keep a closed abattoir reserve account? If you do, what is the current balance in the account?
- 4. What amount does capital investment in your abattoir come to, and what amounts make up the loan costs?
- 5. Supply detailed certified statements giving an analysis of the income and expenditure of your abattoir for the preceding two financial years, the approximate income and expenditure for the current financial year and, if more than six months of your current financial year have already expired, the estimated income and expenditure for the coming financial year.
- 6. State full reasons for any substantial changes in the respective income and expenditure items between the financial years referred to in item 5.
- 7. Supply a 'Statement of slaughterings' in which are indicated the actual, estimated and expected slaughterings of the different kinds of animals at your abattoir for the financial years referred to in item 5. The numbers slaughtered by the abattoir owner either for his own account or on behalf of someone else where an abattoir tariff and a slaughter tariff are applicable) and the numbers slaughtered by any other person for his own account (where only an abattoir tariff is applicable) must be indicated separately.

STATEMENT OF SLAUGHTERINGS

Kind of animal	Slaughterin	gs during—	slaugh-	Estimated slaugh- terings	
	19	19	terings 19	19	
(a) Slaughtered by the abattoir owner either for his own account or on behalf of someone else (abattoir tariff and a slaughter tariff):					
Cattle	*************		**************	********	
Calves		*************			
Sheep and goats					
Pigs with a mass exceeding 25					
Pigs with a mass of 25 kg or				***************************************	
less					
Horses, mules and donkeys	************				
(b) Slaughtered by any other person (abattoir tariff):	,				
Cattle	************	<		****************	
Calves	**************		*************	****************	
Sheep and goatsPigs with a mass exceeding 25	# # # # # # # # # # # # # # # # # # #	***************		************	
Ried with a man 25 ha on loss	*************	****************		***********	
Pigs with a mass 25 kg or less Horses, mules and donkeys				***********	
riorses, mules and donkeys	***************************************			************	

8. Supply in respect of the financial years referred to in item 5 a 'Statement of re-inspection' indicating the actual, approximate and estimated number of carcasses and/or quantity of meat of the different kinds of animals offered/to be offered for re-inspection.

General Regulations

STATEMENT OF RE-INSPECTION

Carcasses/Meat	Re-inspection	on during-	mate re-	Estimated re-inspec- tion 19	
	19	19	inspection 19		
Cattle				*****************	
Sheep and goat Pig with a mass exceeding 25 kg. Pig with a mass 25 kg or less Horses, mules and donkeys.					
Meat (kg)			***************************************	*********	

- 9. Give full particulars of the labour framework at the abattoir, with emphasis on the changes during the financial years referred to in item 5.
- 10. Give full particulars of the basis on which Departmental expenditure for the account of the abattoir is apportioned, with emphasis on the health inspection service.
- 11. Give any other information to which you wish to draw attention.

the undersigned, in my or do hereby declare that	capacity as
Date	Applicant".

General Regulations

ANNEXURE E1

ABATTOIR INDUSTRY ACT, 1976 (No. 54 OF 1976)

LEVY RETURN: ABATTOIR OWNERS

Name of owner Address of owr Situation of about Town	erattoir:	•••••	****	*****			*******	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	·····
Month in respec	t of which th			n is	furn	ishe	d		19
A.—Particulars levy is pay		er (of	slaug	hter	ed a	animal	s on	which a
Kind o	f animal			lumb ughte			ate of levy	p	Levy ayable
Cattle	s		****		*******			R.	
								R.	
	ictable comm				ding	to I	Part B	R	
	unt payable							_	
B.—Particulars the propert	of the numbe y of the aba					ani	imals v	vhich	was not
Kind o	f animal			Numb ughte			ate of levy	p	Levy ayable
Cattle	S	• • •		*******				R.	
Total								R.	
Less dedu	ctable comm	issic	n a	ccor	ding	to I	Part B	R.	
Net amo	unt payable					•••		R.	
C.—Statement	of total mont	hly :	slaı	ighte	ring	s:			
4	То	tal n	uml	ber of	anin	nals	slaughte	red	
	Cattle		Calv	/es	s	heep	and	Pigs	Horses, mules and donkeys
Deduct numbers of		Bul Hei	ls ifers		G	eep		***********	
cases condemni human consumpt Net number of anin which levy is payal	ion			141857777				**********	

Republic of Namibia 18 Annotated Statutes

REGULATIONS Abattoir Industry Act 54 of 1976

General Regulations

I,	in my hat the wledge slaugi	capac parti and b htering	cula cula celie ss r	rs f a efer	in this nd that red to Abatt	retu it it in oir C	rn cor reg	are c respo	or	rect is w	to the ith the of the		
Date	**********	**********		***	*******		O	wner	,,,,,	*****	,		
		AN	NE	ΧU	RE E	2							
ABATTOI	R IND	USTR	RY A	A C	Т, 197	6 (N	io.	54 O	F	197	6)		
LE	VY R	ETUR	N:	AB	ATTO	IR A	٩G	ENTS	S				
Name of agent. Address of agen													
Situation of aba Week in respect													
A.—Particulars levy is paya		numb	er (of s	slaugh	tered	an	imals		on v	vhich a		
Kind of animal					Number slaughtered through agency of agent			Rate of levy			Levy payable		
Cattle. R. Calves. R. Sheep and goats. R. Pigs. R. Horses, mules and donkeys. R. Total. R.													
B.—Statement	_	To	tal n	umi	ghterin per of a ugh age	nimal ncy or	age	ent	rec	1	Horses,		
	Cat	tle 1	_	Caiv	/es		ep :	and	P	igs	mules and donkeys		
	Bulls Cows Oxen		Bul Hei	is ifers	***********	Shee			1111				
	Heifers Total	***********							***				
Subtract numbers of cases condemne human consumpt							=		-				
Net number of anim which levy is payal	nals on												
I,the undersigned hereby declare is best of my known	, in my	e part	icula	as	in this			********		*****	**********		
Date		********			*********		Age		****	******	**********		
CERTIFICATE ABOVE-MEN I, the undersigned hereby certify the	, in my	capace parti	NII city cula	as.	LS W	ERE	SI	AUC	3F	ITE.	RED		
Date	********				******	Own	er	of ab	at	toir	**********		

General Regulations

ANNEXURE F ABATTOIR INDUSTRY ACT, 1976 (No. 54 OF 1976) REGISTER OF DAILY SLAUGHTERINGS

| Parish | P